Rider Finding Coal Croppings Triggered
DogHoles ThatBecame Town of Savanna

Editor’s Note—The history
ol Savanna schools is con-
tained in a full research of
Pittsburg county schools as
compied by ®e Pittsburg
County Retired Teachers
associafion for entry in the
75th anniversary ‘of
Oklahoma‘s statehood com-
pettion, for which it won a
Bue ribban. The two writers

--acknowlaedge - with ap-
predation ‘the assistance of
Mrs. Grace Manos, Mr. and
Mrs, Champ Hodgens, Mr, and
Mrs. Glann Haswell, Joe
Brown, Raphael Jones, Mrs.
Lucille Oliver, and old letters
furnished by Marcella
Wilkins.

By Agnes Carter, assisted
by Pearl Dunn

Savanna is a small town
located nine miles
McAlester in Pittsburg

-county,
Savanna had its beginning
yvears ago when a rider
passing through came upon
it coal cropping. After the
word was spread, people
hegan o sink *‘dog holes'.
The v were worked wilh a
whim and mules walking in
circles. The supply seemed
lo be inexhaustible, and a
mming company soon sank
two- large shafts- that
beeame known as No. 1 and
No. 2,

The mining company
built rows of houses for
miners' families who came
in from the easl. These
houses were two and three
room structures, and they
rented for $2.00 per room
per month. Workers began
lo come in from all over the
Territory. A company store
was buill along with other
business buildings. The
people soon built a Catholic
church and a Methodist
church. With this influx of
families the need for a
school was soon a realily.
The mines were beginning
to produce and the miners
were making money. The
M. K. and T. railroad and
the Frisco lines ran a race
to see which would get a
right-of-way through this
part of Indian Territory.
The M.K. and T. won. In
1888 there was an explosion
in the No. 2 mine which
closed down the mines, and
the people who remained in
the area began to farm and
raise catlle,

of”

Oklahoma. -

Savanna was in-
corparated as a eity in 1950.
The Tfirst city council
members were Champ
Hodgens, Hubert Forbis,
and Harold Lindley. They
promoted the installment
of the first waler svstem.

The Tirst posloffice in
Savanna was located in the
Knox store, which was
later purchased and
vperaled as the Caffaro
store for many years. The
posloffice was moved and
operated by Anna Knox on
the corner of Main and
Choctaw avenue until a few
years ago, when it was
moved to its present
location.

The postoffice has been
operaled by Anna Knox,
Charles Wilson, Anna Lee
Stanridge, Bessie Gossett,
Billie Jo Phifer, Flora

_Bernard,.and the present

postmaster, Harry Joe
Frasco.

The first school in
Savanna aboul which
records can be located was
established in 1897-98 and
was constructed of rough
lumber. This building
vaught fire at one time, but
I'rofessor Aston and the
twys of the school were
able lo put oul the fire, In
those days schools were
lew and far between and
were mainlained by
popular subscription with
the pupils usually paying a
lee of one dollar,.g jnonth.

There were no
qualifications other than
knowing how to read and
wrile, required of the
leachers. In 1898-99 Miss

Tleming look the school,

and the length of her tenure
is unknown. From letters
written by Beulah Mackey
Jones to her brother when
he was away attending an
Indian boarding school, we
find [actual information
thal she taught in Lhe
Methodist church during
the years of 1905-1907.

By an act of congress on
May 29, 1908, Savanna
school district acquired a
tract of 1.30 acres for $25 on
which a white lwo-story
concrete block building
was constructed, and this
was the first permanent
school, This building was

used for grades one
through eight and served
the community until 1916.
Al that lime a three-slory
red building of brick was
cornstructed and ‘a high
schonl was begun. The o%d
white huilding  was  still
used  for  grades  ont
through six. with grades
seven  Lhrouglh ~ lwelve
nMaviIng new
building,

inte  Lhe

The  first

_—praduating _class was in

1922 and members were
Thelma Savage. Helas
Pfeiffer, and Eva Frosco.
During lhe next 15 years
the school continued o
progress with an increase
in enrollmenl and more
pupils graduating from
high school.

In 1936 the old red brick

“building and the white
block building were con-
-demned as unsaf- for the
children, and in 1937 a new
building was constructed
and eguipped Lo house
elementary and high school
students al an estimated
cost of $100,000. In 1938 a
small red brick gym-
nasium was constructed at
an estimated cost of

INNON: heevaov. -
rock  gymnasium was
constructed in 1940 at an
estimated cost of $350,000
which also served as an
auditorium, being
equipped with stage and
dressing rooms.

Many changes came in
the Savanna school district
with the construction of the
U.S. Naval Ammunition
depot in the 1940s. The
school grew from a 12-
teacher school with an
enrollment of 346 to a 23-
teacher school. During the
years of World War II the
enrollment jumped to 1,125,
with only 23 teachers
because that was all who
could be employed. It was a
tremendous job to operale
a school with a daily
average altendance of 53
pupils per room for grades
1 through 12. Students were
crowded into every
available space. The old
brick gymnasium was
made into a multiple
classroom with different
subjects being taught in
four different sections,

“equipped

Since that time a number
of buildings have been
constructed including the
school lunchroom and an
industrial _arts shop. A
modern teacherage was
constructed in 1941 at an
approximate cost of $5,000,
In the 1942 the home
economics cottage was
with  three
complele units of electrie
refrigerators, stoves,
sewing machines, and-
other furnishings, all at a
cost nf some £10a08 4 e

stadium was constructed in
1950 al an approximate cost
of $20000, and included
flood lights, public address
system, concession stand

and fencing.

Then, in 1953, a new high
school of ultra-modern
architecture style was
constructed at- an ap-
proximate cost of $69,000,
and il was equipped and
furnished in modern . fur-
nishings. It is estimated
that the tolal cost of the
new school building con-
struction in the Savanna
districl during Lhe past 20
years has _been $290,000,_

| he Pedl v g,
redecorating, and  mam-
lenance work which has
been done each vacation
period.

Since the Savanna
schools are in the vicinity
of the U.S. Naval

Ammunition depot (now
known as the Army
Ammunition Plant) they

have benefitted greatly
from federal funding. This
aid is known as impact aid
from public laws 874 for
maintenance and operation
aid and 815 for school
building aid. Some of the
funding for the buildings
listed above has come [rom
this Federal impact aid.
- The old traditional
wooden desks, some double
and some single, were used
in Savanna schools until
1940, These were fastened
to the [loor. Then with the
building of new buildings,
new moveable furniture
was purchased. The high
school was equipped with
the new moveable desk and



chair type, The first and
second Erades new Tur-
niture was lables and
_chairs which could be
arranged in many func-
tional arrangements. Each
teacher was furnished with
new modern teachers'
desks and chairs and filing
cabinets. Each teacher also
was furnished with maps,
globes, book shelving
suitable for each grade
level, and reference books.
The high school library was
brough!t to-date with new
furniture, adequate book
collections, and media
equipment and malerials.
The early schools taught
reading, writing, arith-
melic, and spelling and
grammar, On Friday af-
ternoons. the pupils were
allowed to have a periud of
drawing and music. Later,
history and science were
added to the upper grades.
There has been a greal
change in the curriculum of
the high school over Lhe
_ years. Savanna has offered

all the required subjects;

and many electives to give
“the students a choice 'In
acquiring their units which
are required for
graduation. Over the years
special emphasis has been
placed on vocational
education with outstanding
results in vocational
agriculture, industrail
arts, home economics and
the commercial depart-
ments. Remedial reading,

“physical eéducation, driver

education, band, and vocal
music have been added.
The vocational subjects
have helped the graduates
to earn a living when it
was not possible for them
to go to college. Savanna is
a member of the North
Central Association of
Secondary schools, which
sets high accrediting
standards for the high
school.

Savanna schools have
had a good balance of
activities for the students.
Ech year an all-school
carnival has been held with
many students par-
ticipating in the elemen-
tary grades and the high
school. The highlight of the
carnival has been the
crowning of the queen and
king, with each school class
sponsoring candidates and
working hard f{o raise
money and become the
winner. Operettas were
held for beth elementary
and high school students,
with the Candlelight
Christmas program
becoming an annual event.

During World War II
palrioti€ ~programs were”
presented lo promote lhe
sale of war bonds and ..
stamps. Everyone always
looked forward to the
Senior class three-act play,
which created a lot of in-

terest among pupils, -
teachers, and parents.
Today, the Savanna

schools partipate in the
county, district, and state
tournaments in music,
speech, 4-H clubs, FHA,
and FFA, as well as in
athletics.

For the most part,
athletics have been limited
to football, basketball, and
track: ‘In the early years,
basketball was played
outdoors and in the
daytime. In 1936 softball
teams for bath boys and
girls were organized. With
building of a gymnasium in
1938, basketball - games
could be played at night. To

heip promote interest,
loyalty, and pep for
athletics, the. pep clubs

were organized to per-
format all basketball and

- f[ootball games. The teams

were called “*Bulldogs”
and the school colors_
chosen wre royal blue and
old gold.

Buses were first used to
transport  pupils to
Savanna schools in 1929,
coming from the
surrounding areas of Wise,
Brewer, C-Tree, and
Peaceable. The first buses
were made up in “a shop.
The tops looked more like a
large box, and benches
were constructed along the
sides for children to sit on.
Thesewere placed on aflat-
top truck,They wereusually
owned by the persons
serving as drivers. By 1930
the school-owned buses
replaced the privately
owned buses. By 1939, good
Ford, Chevrolet, buses
were purchased which had
seating for 35 to 50
students, and they wre
heated, Today, thanks to
the State Transportation
division of the GState
Deprtment of Education,
the buses are very modern,
with up-to-date equipment.

We have listed some of
the accomplishments of

Mrs. Pearl Dunn on
previous pages of this
information. Some of the
accomplishments of her
sucecessor, James
Anderson, were the con-
struction of the garage
building for buses and the
adding of the instrumental
music program or band,
with Edwin Ashmore being

the first band director.

- Underthe superintendency ~
of Mr. Douglas Hamilton a
was __

new _gymnasium
constructed in 1966 with o
seating capacity of 1200,
which was named for Mr.
Hamilton, and a new in-
dustrial arts building in
1969. Mr. Hamilton served
the district for 10 years.
We have recorded that
Mrs. Pear] Dunn served
the schoo! district as a
history teacher from 1935
to 1942, and then as the
superintendent of schools
for 15 years from 1942 lo
1957.
_ Mr. Glenn Haswell, the
present. superintendent,
came lo Savanna in 1976,
and some of the ac-
complishments since that.
time have been: the
passing of a bond issue in
the amount of $96,000 for
four added classrooms, two
offices, board room,
teachers lounge in the high
school, seven additional
classrooms carpeted and
ceiling lowered with in-
direcl lighting, carpeting in
all  ‘the elementary ~
classrooms, new aluminum
bleachers, pressbox,—and
dressing rooms at the
stadium, and the passing of
a $110,000 bond issue for a
new vocational agriculture
building and the addition of
dressing rooms and the
gymnasium;

Some statistics con-

cerning - the Savanna
Public  Schools pre-
sently in 1984 are:

High school enrollment
159, junier high 128,
elementary 193.
Faculty
high school 14, junisr
high 8,
kindergarten 1.

members in

elementary 9,
and
Special services:
medial math teacher
and one teacher's ald.

RE=

School buses number
five with five drivers;
three
two

custodians and
maintenance men;
seven cafeteria
workers and six secre-

taries.



